




  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

1 
 

Mashpee Planning Board 

 Minutes of Meeting 

Wednesday, December 06, 2023 at 7:00PM 

Mashpee Town Hall - Waquoit Meeting Room 

16 Great Neck Road North 

Mashpee, Ma 02649 

 

Broadcast Live on Local Channel 8  

Call-in Conference Number: (508)-539-1400 x 8585 

Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee website 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel -8 

 

Present: Chair Karen Faulkner, Mary Waygan, Dennis Balzarini, Mike Richardson, Dale 

Oakley, Robert (Rob) Hansen 

Also Present: Evan Lehrer – Town Planner, Jack McElhinney – Attorney for Willowbend  

Virtually Present: Matthew Eddy – Baxter & Nye Engineering, Ed Pesce – Consulting 

Engineer  

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairwoman Faulkner called the meeting of the Planning Board to order at 7:00PM. The 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – November 15, 2023   

There were no comments regarding the meeting minutes for November 15, 2023.  

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Richardson made a motion to approve the meeting minutes as presented. Seconded 

by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

Lynne Barbee- She is Chair of the Human Services Committee and she wanted to comment 

on the Housing Production Plan. She would like to be available and included in one of those 

stakeholder meetings. It’s a very important document. With December 18th as a deadline, does 

that give enough time for feedback?  

 

Mr. Lehrer replied that stakeholder meetings are afforded to regulatory boards as well as the 

development community, to determine whether our proposed strategies are feasible. We don’t 

want to implement actions that cannot be completed. Those meetings should wrap up within 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel%20-8


  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

2 
 

the next two weeks. He did have an opportunity to speak with the Cape Cod Commission 

about the grant draft. He would like to make the comment period inclusive and efficient. We will 

be sure that the comment period on the draft is substantial. It would be unique to put Ms. 

Barbee on this list.  

 

Ms. Waygan advocated that Ms. Barbee is the Chair of Human Services and goes to all 

Affordable Housing Meetings. Ms. Faulkner will follow up with an update at the next meeting.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

7:10PM (Continued from 08/02/2023)  

  Applicant:  Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC  

  Location:   275 Quinaquisset Avenue (Map 69 Parcel 32) 

Request:     Applicant proposes to modify the Willowbend Country Club Special Permit 

to construct a 14-unit single family cottage community immediately 

contiguous to the Willowbend Golf Course. With these changes the total 

unit count for the Willowbend project would be increased to 287 if the 

Board authorizes the annexation of 275 Quinaquisset into the Willowbend 

Special Permit as allowed. 287 dwelling units is the maximum number of 

dwelling units authorized under the Special Permit. All units will be 

connected to end served by the existing privately owned wastewater 

treatment plant which serves the entire Willowbend project.  

 

Mr. McElhinney is here for Southworth, along with Matthew Eddy, Principal of Baxter & Nye 

and site engineer. There are two issues needing to be discussed and resolved relative to the 

project. First is the bedroom count issue, a separate application to discuss later. The other 

major issue holding up progress was unable to make required special permit findings. The 

environmental board indicated its strong desire to wait for indications from the Conservation 

Commission for review of the project to proceed on a parallel track. Mr. McElhinney reminded 

the Board about the reduction in the scope from 14 units to 12 units. The buffer was increased 

on Quinaquisset to 75 feet and the bulk of wetland impact. They agreed with Conservation to 

take that storm water design and concept through Baxter & Nye. The preliminary report dated 

November 16, 2023 showed a significant amount of work to be done with regulatory 

determinations. In conclusion, the project was said to have significant environment benefits. 

They are doing the work requested of them in terms of regulatory compliance, next they will go 

before Conservation in January and they hope to move forward.   

 

Mr. Pesce reiterated the removal of 2 units, he noted the setback of 65ft. plus another 5ft. of 

clearance to total 70ft. On sheet C3.1, he made a number of comments, revisions of the 

grading, storm water, issues regarding groundwater elevation, and other minor stuff. The 

design changed to allow for more space between buildings. Comments were addressed 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

3 
 

satisfactorily. Plans have been properly revised, all previous concerns were answered, it is 

designed for 100 year storm, and in accordance with current general practice. 

 

Mr. Eddy echoed Mr. Pesce about the 70 ft. buffer, relocation of wetlands reduction, increase 

of road widths to 20 ft., and shoulders are now 5 ft. The T turnaround was reconfigured so no 

driveways are affected. There will be a no parking sign on T turnaround. The elimination of 

units allows distance between structures to be greater than 20 ft.  The overall lawn area has 

been increased.  

 

Ms. Waygan confirmed the removal of the cart path along Quinaquisset. Mr. Eddy affirmed 

there is no cart path along that road and that entire buffer area off Quinaquisset is undisturbed 

aside from the main entrance.  

 

Mr. Balzarini asked if there was going to be any restoration behind the development on Quaker 

Run. The restoration areas are the bogs that run to the westerly side, directly along Quaker 

Run. He would like them to keep an open mind regarding further up Quaker Run. He agrees 

the benefits seem pretty good. Mr. Eddy explained that area is targeted and mitigation will be 

restored over 13:1 ratio. The restoration being provided is well over the wetland mitigation 

bylaw requirements.  

 

Ms. Waygan requested Mr. Eddy elaborate more on the 13:1 ratio and how one obtains that. 

Mr. Eddy referred to the mitigation table. There are three small areas, wetland impact areas 

next to Quinaquisset Ave., behind units 10 and 11, then an isolated area to the east near the 

village green, and a small wetland area behind cottage 6. When those mitigation areas are 

added up, that total acreage, in comparison to the amount of bog restoration, equals a ratio of 

13:1.  

 

Ms. Waygan pointed to C6.1 and inquired across the 5,000s.f. if we are providing 2 acres of 

restoration. This is 88,000s.f. of mitigation and restoration of the bogs, as opposed to the 

6,000s.f. wetland impact. Mashpee Bylaw requires 2,000s.f. of wetland mitigation.  

 

Ms. Faulkner asked how many years it would take to restore these bogs. Mr. Eddy stated the 

construction is 6 months, then each year there will be visible improvements. It’s in the 

neighborhood of 3-5 years where the wetland system bounces back and is fully established. 

There is a built in 3 year monitoring multiyear process. Willowbend will put up a performance 

bond to make sure everything is running.  

 

Mr. Oakley asked what the wetland will look like in the end. Mr. Eddy exclaimed the goal would 

be to restore itself to a naturalized wetland system and stream. Previously he provided pictures 

of restored bogs to the Board, he will resubmit.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

4 
 

Ms. Waygan would like Mr. Eddy to resubmit those photos.  

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to continue the Public Hearing to a later time of 8:05P.M. 

Seconded by Mr. Richardson. All in favor.  

 

7:20PM (Continued from 08/02/2023)  

  Applicant:   Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC  

  Location:   Willowbend Permit Area  

 Request:   Applicant proposes to modify the Willowbend Special Permit by amending 

the condition limiting the number of bedrooms allowed in the project. 

Currently Willowbend is allowed 853 bedrooms. Willowbend proposes to 

remove this condition or increase the maximum allowance.  

 

Chair Faulkner provided some back story. On July 31, 2023 a legal letterhead from one 

Attorney Donald Pinto was forwarded to Attorney Patrick Costello, Legal Counsel for the 

Town. An e-mail from the Town Manager was sent to Town Counsel where the July 31st letter 

was in question and the governing authority wanted clarification. On August 22nd Chairwoman 

attended a Zoom with Attorney Donald Pinto, Jack McElhinney, Troy Miller, and Town 

Planner, Evan Lehrer. Attorney Pinto outlined his arguments and Town Counsel suggested a 

formal request for the Planning Board to go into executive session to assert merits. The Board 

met on September 20th and agreed executive session was not happening unless there was a 

written request. An exchange between the Town Manager and Chair Faulkner ensued on 

September 21st, he was aware of the letter and there was push back from members of the 

Board regarding ex parte communications and transparency of process. It was concluded no 

executive session, as that would be premature. Ms. Faulkner wrote a memo to the Board on 

October 18th because of her appearance in that Zoom which could have been a violation. She 

was asked to be present by Town Counsel. She listened to his arguments. The only time she 

recalls speaking at all was in regards to the interpretation of the 853 bedroom cap. The 

question remains, is it in accordance with density as a function of zoning or wastewater 

capacity. No negotiations took place, she is a former officer of the court, and nothing resulted 

from the August 22nd Zoom meeting, and her duty to act impartially remains intact.  

 

Mr. McElhinney noted this is a hold up to the Cranberry Point project. This issue came up 

many months ago and it’s been a struggle to find a resolution. He appreciated the chronology 

but the legal position from the July 31st letter was because there was a fundamental 

disagreement regarding enforceability of the 1991 document. Bedroom count was tied to the 

capacity of the sewer treatment in 1987 and as it exists today. DEP limitations have been 

waived for the past 15 years. They would like a resolve and to be able to move forward 

however that looks.   



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

5 
 

Mr. Lehrer will provide some clarification. The memo on August 2nd shows estimates more 

inflated. The original estimate included four streets that were actually not subject to the 

Willowbend Special Permit. According to the accessors map that is 140 bedrooms. 140 

subtracted from 995 is 855. Mr. Lehrer’s best guess is 855 bedrooms, their total is higher. His 

questions to the Board pertain to the following. Currently, there are homes in the Willowbend 

area that have a building permit and are under construction. How do we want to proceed with 

those homes if we don’t have a modification to accommodate those bedrooms? Are you 

interested in modifying the permit in those bedrooms? There are at least 13 properties in 

Willowbend, properties that remain vacant and have not exercised their development rights. 

Those 13 property owners plus 4 of the 6 lots, assuming each is a 4 bedroom layout, 

constitutes 68 additional bedrooms. Is the Board interested in modifying the permit to 

appease those property owners?  

 

Ms. Faulkner suggested when these buyers closed on these lots, their closing attorney would 

not necessarily show the buyer the special permit that says what it says. It was stated they 

would have seen that as part of their title exam.  

 

Mr. Lehrer circled back to his questions, one being about the projects in the permit currently 

under construction, the vacant lots, and the Board’s interest to further accommodate up to 

287 unit max as we had for Cranberry Point, or some other project should that not be 

feasible?  

 

Ms. Waygan noted procedurally, the Public Hearing is closed before a board goes into 

deliberation. She is not comfortable with being flexible on this project. She is disturbed that 

there were members of this group that felt it was going to be a lawsuit. We should be strict on 

how we proceed if people feel there is a willingness for our decision to be challenged in court. 

Hence, she doesn’t want to trigger anything that will become a procedural issue. In the past, 

we have given an opinion, but with this, she is not expressing any opinion until the Public 

Hearing is closed and there is formal deliberation. She cautions others on the matter as well. 

We should get the website updated with the application as amended and any other 

amendments, any correspondence such as the Town Manager e-mails, Attorney Pinto’s letter, 

Town Planner updates, Town Counsel’s response, and Board meeting minutes from June 

21st, July 5th, August 2nd, September 6th, and October 18th. Our next step is to request access 

to Town Counsel to have a public meeting with him and ask questions on zoning bylaw for the 

zoning applicant referenced. How a permit is modified, approved with conditions, or denied. 

What information does the Planning Board need to make those findings and decisions.  

 

Mr. Balzarini commented we are not going to take bedrooms that are already there, he 

doesn’t want to take those rights for what is being built.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

6 
 

Ms. Waygan asked how a proponent can bring forth violations and come compliant, and then 

how does it affect this Board’s modifications to the Special Permit.  

 

Mr. McElhinney rejects the idea that they are not in compliance. Anything asked or suggested 

by this Board has been attended to thoroughly. We were asked to bring forward a modification 

for the bedrooms, and they did that in the spirit on moving forward. He does believe it has 

grown out of proportion. He wants to remind this Board they introduced Town Counsel into 

this matter. Without any notice to them, members of this Board met with Town Counsel in 

early April or May, soliciting an opinion about whether they were in compliance. It was then 

reported they were not and door to door bothering of our property owners was threatened, so 

yes, they defended their legal right. The Chair should understand as a matter of courtesy 

when a party is represented, our counsel directs correspondence to Patrick Costello. It’s 

unfortunate it was blown into something greater. This Board sought legal opinion. When did 

Ms. Waygan meet with Mr. Costello? He answered back in April.  

 

Ms. Waygan thinks there was a request to get information from Town Counsel, she was not 

Chair so she dropped off the conversation. She would like to follow up with Town Counsel, 

she has some serious technical issues about this. She does not want to go down a pathway 

that causes a problem for anyone.  

 

Mr. McElhinney would encourage a revisit to the history of this matter. It was suggested they 

bring this as a separate modification in hopes it would get beyond that. He is now requesting 

the right to withdraw without prejudice. He doesn’t see any utility to this process. He would 

ask the Board approve that.  

 

Mr. Lehrer posed three questions previously and is still awaiting an answer.   

 

Ms. Faulkner figures they are exceeding 130 bedrooms over the maximum limit, assuming all 

configurations have four bedrooms.  

 

Ms. Waygan noted this is not up to date. Any new permits that come online she would like to 

capture.  

 

Mr. Richardson thinks too much time is being spent on this and it’s becoming messy. He 

would like to move forward. The wastewater treatment hooks up many other facilities, is there 

any damage anywhere?  

 

Ms. Waygan emphasized this was a 134 unit mistake. She really wants to see what their 

power is and she would like to speak with Town Counsel. People who bought this land had 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

7 
 

lawyers that looked at this. How this slipped through she is unsure. Town Counsel feels the 

cap was a zoning issue not wastewater capacity.  

 

Mr. Balzarini asked what is to be gained. We have given them 22 modifications. He doesn’t 

understand where his fellow member is going or what the gain is for all the pushback.  

 

Ms. Waygan answered that this lot of land to be developed, without this Special Permit it is 

under current zoning, but trying to expand into Cranberry Point with the special permit they 

can have up to 12 units because they are using 1985 zoning. Who gets to use that? They 

should use current zoning. That special permit has a growth mechanism in it, it froze the 

bylaw in place. Our bylaw has changed over 2 decades. You’re not supposed to use 1985 

zoning forever. She would like to defer to Town Counsel about it. If people have purchased 

development rights that aren’t real, that’s a huge problem. Is this in our jurisdiction?  

 

Ms. Faulkner asked about the Special Permit and how certain areas fall under its orbit.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated our current zoning has a provision to allow any multi permitted project to 

expand, you specifically authorized the use of zoning criteria, that’s what the Town has 

adopted.  

 

Ms. Waygan noted you have to maintain all conditions under that Special Permit. This project 

is not abiding by their conditions. You cannot annex land into a Special Permit. There is no 

mechanism to go forward on this.  

 

Ms. Faulkner asked what the Board will do after the closing of this Public Hearing.  

 

Mr. McElhinney repeated his request to withdraw the application without prejudice. These 

issues need to be resolved in another forum.  

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to withdraw without prejudice. Seconded by Ms. Waygan. 

All in favor.  

 

Ms. Waygan followed up that she would like to see Town Counsel respond to this and she 

would like the documents in public record and on the website.  

 

Mr. Lehrer agreed that in the event of an appeal, the record is concise.  

 

Ms. Waygan would like to add to the website the application and plans as amended, 

correspondence from Mr. Pesce, the Special Permit dated 1987 as amended, correspondence 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

8 
 

from Wendy Williams, Arden Russell, and Tom Fudala. She is unsure how many people came 

to provide comment, she would also ask for the minutes from March 1st, March 8th, March 29th, 

April 19th, May 3rd, June 7th, June 21st, August 2nd, September 2nd, and October 18th. This 

should be inclusive of the site visit and any notes from March 8th. She would like the Town of 

Mashpee’s Rules and Regulations governing subdivision of land, the 2017 Special Permit 

Regulations, current zoning bylaw, the 1985 Zoning Bylaw, and all written comments. 

 

Mr. Lehrer will take that direction.  

 

Mr. McElhinney doesn’t see a need to close the hearing, he would caution the Board it is not 

within their purview or jurisdiction with zoning, any attempt based solely on bedroom count, an 

alleged violation, is suspect as a legal matter. He thinks they should talk to Town Counsel and 

review where we came from. Every request has been accommodated on this project since day 

one, including widening, splitting, increasing buffers, modification with this Board in 1992 

where the 100 ft. buffer was specifically waived, not only up the street but the parking lot 

across from this site. We are prepared to do more on mitigation to the cranberry bogs if that 

would get us over the hurdle. This has been held up with issues, at this point he is unsure why 

we are still here discussing this. This Board can certainly address the bedroom count in the 

context of a final decision. We do have to bring this to a head. If Town Counsel’s input would 

help, that’s why Willowbend reached out to him. They welcome the opportunity.  

 

MOTION:  

Ms. Waygan made a motion to continue the Public Hearing on 275 Quinaquisset Ave. for 

December 20, 2023 at 7:30p.m.  Mr. Richardson seconded. All in favor.  

 

NEW BUSINESS  

Vote to set special joint meeting on Monday, December 18, 2023 with Select Board to 

review and adopt the updated Housing Production Plan.  

Mr. Lehrer doesn’t want to extend the review period and editing period for longer than 

necessary. If we need more than one joint meeting we can do that. He would ask to set the 

joint meeting to begin the review, subsequent to closure, the draft requires edits.  

 

Ms. Waygan does not want to vote for a plan that doesn’t have a comment period. We should 

meet jointly to start reviewing it, she will vote no unless there is a comment period. We should 

meet to review the plan, but not meet to adopt. Ms. Waygan is available for a 6:30P.M. start 

time.   

 

 

 

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

9 
 

MOTION: 

Ms. Waygan made a motion to agree to a joint meeting with the Select Board to be held 

on Monday, December 18, 2023 to review but not adopt the Housing Production Plan. 

Seconded by Mr. Richardson. All in favor.  

 

Raze and Replace Bylaw discussion and possible vote to invite the Zoning Board of 

Appeals Conservation Commission and the Board of Health to convene a joint session 

on the subject.  

Mr. Lehrer is suggesting an invitation to those three boards to participate in a process to 

finalize Raze and Replace. He presented changes which will require more work, and more with 

the neighborhoods affected, boards that have a hand, most notably Board of Health, Zoning, 

and Conservation. He doesn’t have a proposal, he just wants a consensus that inviting these 

entities would be beneficial. They can come up with a process for community engagement by 

workshopping a bylaw that is more consistent with efforts brought forth as important by the 

town. We can start with our last draft. The Board could offer their issues at that time. He wants 

to start getting the public involved. His complaints are about discretion and the proposal will 

provide parameters around detriment and non-conformities. This requires process and time.  

 

Ms. Waygan doesn’t understand the items the petitioner earmarked as an issue, she needs to 

understand what they are looking for before introducing more people. This is coming because 

of a petition article, so we should listen to the petitioner first. We have an e-mail from the lead 

petitioner.  

 

Mr. Lehrer argued that would be an added step in the process. It offered too much expansion 

of footprint. It needs to be much clearer with firmer understanding, feedback from a very small 

group within these neighborhoods.  

 

Ms. Waygan stated it’s so complicated, then Town Counsel edited and the PowerPoint, she 

keeps reading it again, it hasn’t sunk in yet.  

 

Mr. Richardson is asking why Zoning isn’t taking the lead on it, Ms. Waygan stated it’s under a 

court case because the bylaw doesn’t say detrimental to the neighborhood.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated the consensus is other chairs are desperate to get involved. Let’s see what 

the petitioner says about what was drafted. They can convene with everyone. He can go back 

to that draft and comments from the last go through. There are a few provisions that are of 

particular interests. In projects mostly completely in land subject to coastal storm flow, there 

will not allow for any increase in coverage or footprint of structure. He will reevaluate his last 

draft, we will review it together, then invite boards. He will send it to petitioner for comment as 

well.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

10 
 

Mr. Hansen asked what happens when we get a new bylaw, we are all in agreement, now ZBA 

does what with the bylaw? He’s looked at some ZBA approvals. They seem blatantly outside 

the bylaw guidelines.  

 

Mr. Lehrer answered if we adopted a bylaw there will be far more clarity around how they 

render decisions. If they are ignored then the town would be subject. An applicant can request 

to alter and we would prescribe certain actions that would determine detriment.   

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Review update draft implementation table of the Local Comprehensive Plan Update  

Ms. Waygan noted the time is late and she would like to hold off on this until December 20th to 

see if more of it can be digested.   

 

Mr. Balzarini did transportation, Mr. Lehrer stated the section is in very good shape regarding 

goals, policies, and actions. One modified action contemplates utilization of mitigation dollars 

taken in by DRI, and since that application has been withdrawn. Action TC3, there are a 

number of intersection improvements by Shellback Way, all of them carried through in the 

table and proposed as an action. The project was referred to the Commission at subject site to 

implement intersection improvements. That project is withdrawn and unclear if it will resubmit, 

if a Special Permit is sought it should be a condition requiring improvement of that intersection 

or a DRI.  

 

Mr. Lehrer commented the town has been accepting layouts without consideration to 

maintenance costs and we have an action that considers the Select Board modify the road 

taking policy. It costs the town just to perform the study. If we decided not to do the road the 

town is out $80,000. Lastly, he wants to include as an action, 209 Old Barnstable Road traffic 

study. He can run a report outlining a series of actions or improvements.  

 

Mr. Balzarini noted under TC9 to have transportation, we also need bus shelters. Ms. Waygan 

stated they cost about $35,000. TC10 says to establish a transit hub to go to Boston in or 

around the Mashpee rotary. TC11 notes to work with Mass DOT with the retrofit. Mr. Balzarini 

does not want to change the rotary. Mr. Lehrer noted there is potential for a modern 

roundabout in efforts to reduce traffic and increase flow, it is worth reevaluating long term 

potential and evaluate in the future. Retrofit is enough.   

 

Mr. Lehrer stated the Town vehicles have not used gas in three years. Mr. Balzarini inquired 

about an electrical dump truck. He would like to note the carbon emissions with the battery 

destruction.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

11 
 

Ms. Waygan referenced TC17 about the greenway. TC5 talks about conductivity between 

neighborhoods and it should be between open space areas, we need to add the word 

between. When she is approaching the convenient store from the soccer fields and she stops 

at this light here, when people are taking a left to Great Neck Road North only four cars get 

through. What if we had more like 8 cars go through? She thinks if a rotary is added it will 

double her time and she will get stuck anyways. There needs to be a traffic study. TC11 noted 

to consolidate and reduce curb cuts along Rt. 151, we need to add within internal circulation 

roads.  

 

Mr. Lehrer would like to consider alternate design options for the potential rotary outside Town 

Hall.  

 

Ms. Faulkner would like to assess the traffic lights and see if they can be synced.  

 

Mr. Lehrer wrote most of sustainability and he reviewed Ms. Waygan’s housing edits. He 

doesn’t have any suggested edits on sustainability.  

 

BOARD ENGINEER REPORT  

Project Reviews and Inspections  

Mr. Pesce commented that November 16th was the last time he spoke with the Board. He met 

with a representative from New Seabury to go over three projects that have not had a release 

of surety, and wanted to go over what was left to be done. They are under agreement in all 

three. One was virtually completed 10 years ago, Fairway Homes at Seaside, it was 

constructed years ago, there is a pool house being constructed on one property. Site walk 

determined a couple of things. He went to The Cottages at phase 3, which he reviewed with 

the Board about topography and grades around building, all that construction has been 

completed. There were a couple small items needing to be taken care of such as outlets, 

elbows, and catch basins to catch debris. Finally, phase 4 for Ockway Village cottages in New 

Seabury closest to the entrance. They are adding the final paving and base course paving at 

the cul-de-sac end. There are various things still needed there. Mr. Lehrer will need a list of 

remaining items for each project. Mr. Pesce will re-inspect and follow up. They can close out a 

couple projects, or at least get some money returned. Bonds for these projects are almost 

$3Million.  

 

The Country Club Estates phase 2 had base course paving road work last week, there were 

several inspections to look at base course gravel thickness and width. Infrastructure is in and 

piping for electric, water, and drainage systems are in. He is looking to meet back with them in 

the coming months.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

12 
 

Mr. Pesce also wanted to inform the Board he is involved with two zoning projects, one at 40 

Evergreen Circle and 50 Evergreen Circle, commercial contractors in the same area.  

 

CHAIRWOMANS REPORT  

Water Quality Issues  

Chair Faulkner wanted to applaud the special vote on November 28th, of 12,900 registered 

voters there were 1,070 ‘yes’ votes and 380 ‘no’ votes, and 2 left blank. That is 10.67% of total 

registered voters.  

 

TOWN PLANNER REPORT  

Harbor Management Planning Committee Update  

The Committee met last month, we are currently in development at the closure of year one. He 

remembers the consultant saying 75% completion, still another year to go. At this point the 

work is being done and the Committee is less involved.  

 

Mr. Oakley stated there will be another public information session at Mashpee Village. There 

was little turn out but some great information was received from folks that attended. He met 

with the Tribe’s elders using lunch and learn, he suggested another lunch and learn session for 

the Tribe after the holidays. That will satisfy their requirements for public engagement.  

 

Housing Production Plan Update 

The HPP is in development. There are some outstanding stakeholder interviews. The 

Affordable Housing Committee will meet this upcoming Tuesday. They are very near 

completion of the final components. The Planning Board, Select Board, and Affordable 

Housing Committee will be first to review. As soon as he has it he will get it to the Planning 

Board.  

 

BOARD MEMBER COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Cape Cod Commission –   Working on their own housing plan. Ms. Waygan 

found their design guidelines. She will provide them to 

the Board.  

Charter Review Committee-    Meet December 17th. Lot of Public Comment at last 

meeting. We want the preamble to be first for our 

federally recognized Tribe.  

Community Preservation Committee- Meeting next Thursday. Reviewing same applications.  

Design Review-      No Meeting  

Plan Review-      No Meeting  

Environmental Oversight Committee- Canceled then convened, Mr. Lehrer was present. 

There is a new member. Mr. Lehrer has the 

Community Coordinator role. They are forming a land 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

13 
 

acquisition committee. DNR for next MVP funding 

round. Next meeting December 11th.  

Historic District Commission-   No Meeting, interviewed two candidates.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning Board at 9:27P.M. 

Seconded by Mr. Richardson. All in favor.  

 

Next Meeting: Wednesday, December 20, 2023 @ 7:00P.M.  

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

 

Christine M. MacDonald  

Board Secretary  

 

 

 

 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS  

Additional documents may be available in the Planning Department.  

- 32 Crescent Road Mass DEP Waterways License Application No. 23-WW01-0123-APP 

- Child’s River Culvert on Rt. 151 MassDEP Waterways License Application No. 23-WW01-

0115-AAP 

- October 2023 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N= 5.2  

- Town of Barnstable  

- Town of Falmouth Notices  

- Town of Sandwich Notices  



kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
PHN 7:10 PM:  OCKWAY HIGHLANDS

kleslie
Typewritten Text





kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
PHN 7:15 PM:  OCKWAY HIGHLANDS

kleslie
Typewritten Text











































































kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
PHN 7:30 PM:  SOUTHWORTH PROPERTIES LLC

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mashpee Planning Board 

Public Hearing Notice 
 

 
Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40A Section 11, the Mashpee Planning 

Board will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, March 1, 2023 at 7:10PM at the 

Mashpee Town Hall, 16 Great Neck Road North, to consider an application from 

Southworth Mashpee Properties LLC, property owner, to modify the Willowbend 

Country Club Special Permit.  The applicant proposes to construct a 14-unit single family 

cottage community immediately contiguous to the Willowbend Golf Course at 275 

Quinaquisset Avenue (Map 69 Block 32). The existing single-family dwelling is 

proposed for demolition. With these changes the total unit count for the Willowbend 

project would be increased to 287 if the Board authorizes the annexation of 275 

Quinaquisset into the Willowbend Special Permit as allowed. 287 dwelling units is the 

maximum number of dwelling units authorized under the Special Permit. All units will be 

connected to and served by the existing privately owned wastewater treatment plant 

which serves the entire Willowbend project.  

 

Submitted by: 

 

Mary E. Waygan 

Mashpee Planning Board 

 

Publication dates: Friday, February 10, 2023    

Friday, February 17, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
NEW BUSINESS

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text



 

 

To see if the Town will vote to repeal Section 174-17.1: Raze and Replace of the Mashpee Zoning Bylaws 

and replace with a new Section 174-17.1 Raze and Replace as follows: 

Purpose and Intent 

Buildings or structures that are nonconforming by dimension are likely if they are changed, extended or 

altered, to cause overcrowding and congestion in the neighborhoods and are contrary to the purposes 

of this bylaw. Buildings or structures that are nonconforming by dimension inhibit present and future 

development of nearby properties. It is intended that existing buildings or structures that are 

nonconforming by dimension shall not justify further departures from this bylaw. This section is 

intended to provide clarity to property owners and any applicable special permit granting authority 

which changes, extensions, or alterations of a pre-existing dimensional conformity may constitute 

detriment to the neighborhood in which the proposed reconstruction is located as to preserve the 

character and general scale of neighborhoods. 

General Requirements 

No pre-existing, non-conforming single or two family dwelling structures shall be torn down and rebuilt 

on any lot unless there is an issuance of a Special Permit from the Zoning Board of Appeals unless the 

proposed reconstruction qualifies for an exception as defined in this chapter or is otherwise buildable 

pursuant to Section 174-21 of this bylaw. Such a special permit may be granted only if the Zoning Board 

of Appeals finds that any changes, extensions, alterations, or reconstruction of the pre-existing non-

conformities are not substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood than existed prior to the 

removal of the existing structure and that there is adequate land area to provide sufficient parking. No 

new nonconformities shall be permitted without the issuance of a variance from the Zoning Board of 

Appeals.  

For All Properties except those Located Within the Floodplain Zone Overlay District and/or 

Popponesset Overlay District 

1. The Zoning Board of Appeals may approve replacement structures that continue, extend, or alter 
lawful pre-existing nonconformities as follows: 
 
a) For structures that do not comply with one or more required setbacks (front, side, rear, and/or 

setback to water and wetlands) property owners may increase the footprint within the side, 

front, rear or water and wetlands setback area provided that the replacement structure is not 

any closer to the applicable property line (or resource area) than existed previously. Any 

structure that is proposed to increase the intensity of a setback nonconformity as described 

shall be considered substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood and shall not be 

permitted. 

 

b) For portions of a structure that are not nonconforming, the replacement structure may increase 

the building footprint and height to the maximum extent allowed in the applicable zoning 

district. For example, a 1.5 story house may be replaced with a 2.5 story house or a house with 

20 feet to the side property line may be replaced with a house that is 15 feet from the side 

property line. The creation of any new nonconformities shall be considered substantially more 

detrimental to the neighborhood and shall not be permitted. 



 

 

 

c) For properties with pre-existing lot coverage nonconformities, the Zoning Board of Appeals may 

approve replacement structures that maintain, but do not increase, the lot coverage 

nonconformity. Any increase of a lot coverage nonconformity shall be considered substantially 

more detrimental to the neighborhood and shall not be permitted. 

 

d) For structures with nonconformities described in items a-c above (setbacks, lot coverage, and 

building height) replacement structures may increase the height of replacement structures up to 

the maximum height allowed in the applicable zoning district. For homes with pre-existing 

nonconforming building heights, the Board of Appeals can approve a replacement structure that 

maintains, but does not increase, the nonconforming nature of the building height. Increases in 

building height nonconformities shall be considered to be substantially more detrimental to the 

neighborhood and shall not be permitted.  

For Properties within the Floodplain Zone Overlay District and/or the Popponesset Overlay District 

The Zoning Board of Appeals may approve replacement structures in the Floodplain Zone Overlay 

District and/or the Popponesset Overlay District that continue, extend, or alter lawful pre-existing 

nonconformities as follows: 

a) For structures that do not comply with one or more required setbacks (front, side, or rear) 

property owners may NOT increase the footprint within the side, front or rear setback area that 

was pre-existing nonconforming. Increases in the size of the building footprint in the Floodplain 

Zone Overlay and Popponesset Overlay Districts shall be considered substantially more 

detrimental to the neighborhood than existed previously and shall not be permitted. The 

location of the footprint of a replacement structure may be adjusted on the lot so long as the 

overall footprint area is not larger than existed previously and is otherwise compliant with the 

provisions of this bylaw. 

 

b) For replacement structures that propose to continue a pre-existing side, front, or rear setback 

nonconformity than any increase in building height within the nonconforming setback area shall 

be considered substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood than existed previously and 

shall not be permitted. Building height may increase provided that the increase in height is 

located within the portion of a structure that conforms with the applicable setbacks of the 

underlying zoning district or overlay as applicable. For example, a house that is situated 10 feet 

from a property line where 15 feet is required may increase the height of a building at the 15 

foot setback line. The portion of a home within the nonconforming setback area shall not 

exceed the height of the home that existed previously. 

 

c) Any reconstruction of a single or two-family dwelling that renders any portion of the lot outside 

of the building footprint impervious shall be considered substantially more detrimental to the 

neighborhood than existed previously and shall not be permitted. Previously existing impervious 

surfaces shall be replaced with pervious materials.  

 

 



 

 

Exceptions 

1. The voluntary demolition and reconstruction of a single or two-family residential structure may be 

approved as of right by the Building Commissioner if the reconstruction complies with all current 

setbacks, lot coverage, and building height requirements defined in 174-31 but is located on a lot 

with insufficient area and/or insufficient frontage where the reconstruction will also comply with all 

of said current requirements except frontage and/or lot area.  

2. The voluntary demolition and reconstruction of a single or two-family residential structure that is 

reconstructed within the same footprint, building height, and the same volume or less as the 

building voluntarily demolished may be approved as of right by the Building Commissioner. 

 



kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
OLD BUSINESS

kleslie
Typewritten Text



























































































































































kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
CORRESPONDENCE

kleslie
Typewritten Text

kleslie
Typewritten Text
















	Agenda 2023.1220 ATT
	PHN_OckwayHighlands_sidewalk_2023.11.21
	OckwayHighlands_PHN Def. Mod_sidewalks
	Ockway Highlands Special Permit Modification - Application
	SKM_80823102715590
	Ockway Highlands Special Permit Modification - Application

	275 Quinauisset Willowbend PHN
	Implementation Plan for Economic Development
	Karen's Implementation Handouts
	Correspondence
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



